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PREFACE 
  
 The following interview is part of the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum's 
collection of oral testimonies. Rights to the interview are held by the United States Holocaust 
Memorial Museum. 
 The reader should bear in mind that this is a verbatim transcript of spoken, rather than 
written prose. This transcript has been neither checked for spelling nor verified for accuracy, and 
therefore, it is possible that there are errors. As a result, nothing should be quoted or used from 
this transcript without first checking it against the taped interview. 
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SOL KOHN 
August 20, 2013 

 

Question: This is the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum interview with Mr. Sol 

Kohn on August 20, 2013 in Inwood, New York.  Thank you, Mr. Kohn, for agreeing to 

meet with us today.  We much appreciate it.  I would like to start the interview to find out 

a little bit about your life and the family you were born into and the world you were born 

into.  So I'm going to start with a basic question. 

What is the date of your birth?  

Answer:  9/9/17. 

Q:  So you were born on September 9, 1917? 

A:  Yes. 

Q:  Where were you born? 

A:  In Germany. 

Q:  What part of Germany? 

A:  A little village in Bavaria. 

Q:  What's it called     

A:     by the name Luelsfeld. 

Q:  Luelsfeld? 

A:  Unheard of.  It was a very small village. 

Q:  Did your family live there for generations? 

A:  Generations. 
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Q:  Really?  Yeah?  Well, were there many Jewish people in Luelsfeld? 

A:  At one time maybe about ten families. 

Q:  Still small.  

A:  Very small village. 

Q:  And     

A:  And towards the end, maybe about two, three families. 

Q:  I see.  Were you an only child? 

A:  No.  I had a brother and a sister. 

Q:  What are your brother and sister's names? 

A:  My sister's name was Erna. 

Q:  Erna? 

A:  And my brother's name Alfred. 

Q:  Alfred.  Were you the youngest or the oldest or in the middle? 

A:  Middle. 

Q:  You were in the middle.  So who was older?   

A:  My brother. 

Q:  How many years older was he? 

A:  Two. 

Q:  Two years older.  And Erna? 

A:  About five years younger.  

Q:  Five years younger.  So she was born in 1922?  

A:  I was born in '17.   

http://collections.ushmm.org 
Contact reference@ushmm.org for further information about this collection

The following transcript is the result of a recorded interview. The recording is the primary source document, not this transcript.  It has 
not been checked for spelling nor verified for accuracy.  This document should not be quoted or used without first checking it against  
the interview. 
 
The interview is part of the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum's collection of oral testimonies.  Information about access and 
usage rights can be found in the catalog record.

 
This is a verbatim transcript of spoken word. It is not the primary source, and it has not been checked for spelling or accuracy. 



Interview with Sol Kohn  5 

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  My sister in '22. 

Q:  And what were your mother and father's names? 

A:  My father's name was Adolf. 

Q:  Um hum.  

A:  And my mother, Hedwig. 

Q:  Were they    were both of their families from Luelsfeld? 

A:  No.  My father was from Luelsfeld, but not my mother. 

Q:  Where was she from? 

A:  A small town, small village nearby, not too far away. 

Q:  Do you remember the name? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  What was it? 

A:  Wiesenbronn. 

Q:  Wiesenbronn.  Did you speak with a Bavarian accent when you used to speak 

German? 

A:  I think so.  Everybody else did. 

Q:  Was German your language at home? 

A:  Yeah.   

Q:  Did your    did anybody in your family speak Yiddish or Hebrew or anything like 

that?  

A:  No. 
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Q:  No.  How is it that there were    how many people lived in Luelsfeld in total?  You 

said it was ten Jewish families, but    

A:  I think towards the end there were only three families. 

Q:  That's right. 

A:  But we're talking about maybe a hundred years before.  They had maybe about ten, 

fifteen    I don't know ten, fifteen families, maybe. 

Q:  And how many people lived in that village in total? 

A:  Five hundred all total. 

Q:  Did everybody know each other? 

A:  Everybody knows everybody. 

Q:  Okay.  So there were no strangers in Luelsfeld? 

A:  No. 

Q:  Okay.  Do you know how many generations your family lived there? 

A:  I don't know how many, but I'm sure many. 

Q:  Was there a synagogue? 

A:  There was a syn    yes. 

Q:  Was there a cemetery? 

A:  No.  But nearby. 

Q:  And was there a school, a Jewish school? 

A:  No. 

Q:  No.  What was your father's business?  What did he do? 

A:  He had machinery, hardware.  
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Q:  Was he a salesman? 

A:  My father? 

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  Yeah, he was a salesman.  It's different in Europe at that time. 

Q:  Okay.  Explain, tell me how.  

A:  My father had a store and a warehouse.  He owned two buildings.  And customers 

came to us and he went out to see customer every day in the villages nearby.  There were 

so many small villages like the village I was born in, 500 people the whole village.  

Q:  And he supplied them all?   

A:  Excuse me? 

Q:  He supplied them with certain products? 

A:  Yes, yes. 

Q:  Yeah.  Was it general hardware that he supplied them, like nails and things like that? 

A:  My father's business    he also had groceries. 

Q:  So he had a general store? 

A:  Like a general store in the village.  Because there were no big stores at that time.  So 

the farmers came and bought what they needed.  And my father also went to the villages 

and sold merchandise, all kind of merchandise, different    machinery, everything, all 

kinds of merchandise. 

Q:  Did you and your brother and sister help him in the store? 

A:  My brother did. 

Q:  Um hum.  
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A:  I    I left after school and worked for another relative. 

Q:  Did you have more relatives in Luelsfeld? 

A:  I had at one time many relatives. 

Q:  Oh, yeah? 

A:  But most of them were killed in the Holocaust. 

Q:  So let's talk about them a little bit.  These were your father's relatives? 

A:  And my mother's. 

Q:  And your mother's also lived in Luelsfeld? 

A:  No, no. 

Q:  They lived elsewhere? 

A:  They lived in smaller towns, and big    there were some bigger towns     

Q:  Okay.  

A:     and villages.  All over. 

Q:  So how many people from your father's family lived    not so much how many people, 

but what kind of jobs did they do, your extended family? 

A:  You mean my uncles? 

Q:  Yeah.   

A:  There was an uncle nearby, two uncles.  They were in the same business, machinery 

and hardware.  It was different over there with hardware.  Everything is different now. 

Q:  Than the way it's sold now? 

A:  We are going back 60, 70    we are going back 80 years. 
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Q:  Had the businesses been formed by your father and your uncles or did they inherit 

them? 

A:  My grandfather had that business already. 

Q:  So it was a family business? 

A:  A family business. 

Q:  Do you remember the name of the store? 

A:  Well, the name of the    of my    of the store of my father was A.L. Kohn. 

Q:  A.L. Kohn.  

A:  A.L. Kohn.  That means Abraham Leib (ph) Kohn.   

Q:  Abraham Leib Kohn.   

A:  The name of my grandfather who started, probably, the business.  I never knew by 

grandfather. 

Q:  Did he die     

A:  He died in 1912. 

Q:  I see, I see.   

A:  And I left in '38. 

Q:  Tell me, did your father    was your father a solder in World War I?  Did your father 

serve in the German military? 

A:  No.  My father had a brother.   

Q:  Uh huh.   

A:  He was in World War I.  And he died.  

Q:  The brother? 
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A:  In the first World War. 

Q:  He died? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Did your father have any other siblings, any other brothers and sisters? 

A:  Yes.  My father had    it was a big family.  He had an uncle in Bamberg, that's another 

town.  He had another brother I know of.  These    these two brothers, they died in the 

Holocaust, too, I'm talking about.  And then he had two sisters    three sisters I know of.  

It was a big family.  I think there were about six or seven children that my grandfather 

had. 

Q:  Were you    was your family a very religious family? 

A:  Very religious. 

Q:  Yes? 

A:  Very religious. 

Q:  And were you orthodox or conservative? 

A:  They were orthodox.   

Q:  They were orthodox. 

A:  Strictly orthodox. 

Q:  And you grew up with a religious education? 

A:  Yeah, I did.   

Q:  Um hum.  

A:  But I changed a little bit. 

Q:  How did you change? 
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A:  Well, I'm not orthodox anymore. 

Q:  Yeah?  Did you    

A:  That means    are you Jewish? 

Q:  No.  

A:  So you know that I'm not supposed to drive a car on Saturday, for instance. 

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  And I always did here. 

Q:  Did you go to synagogue every week? 

A:  Where, in Germany?  Every week. 

Q:  Every week? 

A:  On Saturday. 

Q:  Yeah.  And, did you keep other traditions?  Did you keep kosher at home? 

A:  Kosher, strictly kosher.  My parents were very orthodox. 

Q:  Did your    did you consider your family as middle class? 

A:  Middle class. 

Q:  Okay.  Comfortable?  Financially comfortable? 

A:  Comfortable, yeah. 

Q:  Did your mother have    did she work with your father at all? 

A:  Yeah, in the business. 

Q:  She did?  Was there other    did he hire people outside the family to work? 

A:  Yes.  We had a maid. 

Q:  Okay.  
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A:  And we had a chauffeur.  That's about it. 

Q:  Okay.  And were the chauffeur and maid Jewish or were they     

A:  No. 

Q:  Did you have any contact with the Christian children in the village?  

A:  At that time? 

Q:  Um hum.  

A:  Yeah, I went to school. 

Q:  Can you tell me     

A:  I was the only Jewish fellow in that class. 

Q:  Really?  In primary school? 

A:  Yeah, primary school. 

Q:  So when you went to primary school     

A:  And then I went to high school, which is the equivalent of high school.  They call it 

Realschule. 

Q:  Realschule.  

A:  Did you ever heard of that word?  

Q:  Yes, I did.  Yes, I did.   

A:  I went to that school, but it was in another town. 

Q:  So primary school was in Luelsfeld? 

A:  Yeah.   

Q:  Okay.   

A:  Every village had a primary school. 
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Q:  Okay.  Do you have any memories of going to school as a little kid? 

A:  Sure. 

Q:  What kind?  I mean, do you have any episodes that you remember? 

A:  Like what?   

Q:  Well, how the teachers behaved to the students, how the students were with one 

another?  

A:  Well, there is a big ?station? a big difference.  Hitler came to power in '33, 1933.  

Everything changed.  The whole life changed for the Jewish people.  For instance, I lived 

in    I didn't live at home.  At the age of 16 I worked in another town, a little town.  In '33, 

everything changed.  For instance    when Hitler came to power, I'm talking about. 

Q:  That's right.  

A:  You knew that?   

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  We couldn't go to the movies, the Jewish people couldn't go to a movie.  They 

couldn't even go to    there was a swimming pool there, we were not allowed to go there, 

and so forth, things like that. 

Q:  I want to find out about all of those changes, but before that happens, I would like to 

get a sense of what it was like before Hitler came to power.  So     

A:  When I was a little boy? 

Q:  Yeah, when you were a little boy.  Was it normal? 

A:  There was no persecution. 
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Q:  Did people    did non Jewish people, did they behave in a very rude and derogatory 

way? 

A:  No.  Matter of fact, my neighbors, my parents' neighbors were wonderful people. 

Q:  And did you have friends who were non Jewish, you know, kids that you would play 

with and things?  

A:  Not friends, but other students, let's put it that way, we have in the school. 

Q:  And did    when you were at primary school, did you experience anybody being a 

bully or being     

A:  There was always a little trouble, sometimes. 

Q:  Yeah? 

A:  You know.  They called us names, you Jew bastard, for instance, things like this. 

Q:  Even in the '20s? 

A:  Yeah.  We were    we were different. 

Q:  And you felt that? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  What about the teachers, your teachers at primary school?  Do you have any 

memories of them? 

A:  Yes, yes. 

Q:  And what was your relationship with your teachers? 

A:  Well, I went to public school in the village.   

Q:  Yeah.   

A:  Like here, public school.  And then I went to high school     
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Q:  And you went to high school     

A:  which they called Realschule. 

Q:  And you went someplace else? 

A:  Someplace else. 

Q:  Okay. 

A:  The Realschule was a better school, better education.  I studied English and French, 

chemistry and physics.  They didn't have that in the public school. 

Q:  And did you have to travel from home far away? 

A:  No, I stayed with a family. 

Q:  You stayed with another family? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  How far was this from your own home, from the     

A:  20 miles. 

Q:  So     

A:  It was too far to travel every day to go to school.  So my parents, they    in order to 

get a little better education, I went to that school they called the Realschule. 

Q:  Yeah. 

A:  You heard that word?  

Q:  Of course I did, Realschule.  And tell me, how did you get religious education?  If 

you went to public schools and then you he went to    
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A:  In public school, public school was the first four years of school, a teacher came to 

our village, a teacher from another village.  They had a bigger congregation, Jewish 

congregation, so the teacher came once a week and we had Hebrew school. 

Q:  Within the public school curriculum? 

A:  No. 

Q:  Outside of it? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Uh huh.  So    and you would have this two hours per week, it was the basis of your 

religious     

A:  Are you talking about the Hebrew school?  

Q:  The Hebrew school, yeah.  

A:  He came once a week.  

Q:  Once a week? 

A:  At that time.   

Q:  Okay.   

A:  And later on when I went to high school     

Q:  Uh, huh.  

A:  someplace else we had a different education.  Twice a week. 

Q:  Uh huh.  Did you learn    what were some of the things that you were learning in 

Hebrew school? 

A:  Hebrew school, very little. 

Q:  Very little? 
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A:  Yeah. 

Q:  But did you get a basis of understanding religion and understanding      

A:  Yes.   

Q:     the faith?   

Yeah.  And the traditions? 

A:  Yeah.  

Q:  Your father and your mother, did they have economic difficulties in the '20s when 

there was the Weimar Republic and so many problems? 

A:  I can't remember the Weimar Republic because I was born in '17.  I remember when I 

was five, six years old I can go back to     

Q:  To that? 

A:     I can go back to 1922 that I remember, when I was five years old. 

Q:  Okay.  Between 1922 and 1933 when Hitler comes to power, how did your family 

feel living in Germany?  Did they feel German?  Did they feel completely normal, this is 

their home, this is their country? 

A:  All the Jewish people in Germany, they felt German.  Like I'm here in America, I'm 

American.  I feel American.  Same way.  Matter of fact, I had an uncle, a brother of my 

father, he died in World War I. 

Q:  What was his name? 

A:  His name was Solly.   

Q:  Solly?  

A:  And I'm named after him matter of fact. 
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Q:  Sol, yeah.  

A:  Sol.  

Q:  Tell me, when you were in the Realschule in this other town, were you still attending 

it when Hitler came to power? 

A:  I was in Realschule in 1933, till '33.  Then Hitler came to power.   

Q:  Okay.   

A:  It was so antisemitic at that time already.  I was the only Jew in that class.  Then I 

left. 

Q:  Tell me why.  

A:  Because I'm Jewish.  I was Jewish. 

Q:  So you were thrown away    thrown out? 

A:  I wouldn't say that.  I left.  

Q:  You left? 

A:  But I had to go to school for another year. 

Q:  Where did you go to school? 

A:  So I went to the local school. 

Q:  And what kind of experiences did you have in that local school? 

A:  Not a bad experience in the lower school. 

Q:  Oh, really?  Even though Hitler had come to power? 

A:  Even in the Realschule    I mean even Hitler was in power already, I had    I mean, I 

was the only    I was the only Jewish student in that class.  So I felt very uncomfortable.  I 

was isolated.  
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Q:  Did people treat you differently     

A:  Yes, yes. 

Q:     when Hitler came to power? 

A:  Immediately. 

Q:  You felt it immediately? 

A:  Immediately. 

Q:  How did it show itself?  How did it express itself?  Were they rude to you?  Were 

they just cold?  Did they not speak with you, not look at you? 

A:  Didn't speak with me.  Hitler was    you know a little bit about the story?   

Q:  Yeah.   

A:  He came to power in '33.   

Q:  Yeah.   

A:  Do you know that?  

Q:  Yes, that's right.  

A:  In '33.  Everything changed immediately. 

Q:  Did people you know from your village start treating you differently, people your 

family had known as neighbors and things? 

A:  Well, they didn't want to associate anymore with you.  But they were very nice 

people, actually.  They were wonderful people in the village.  They were afraid to    what 

should I say    to mix with Jewish people anymore.  My family, I would say maybe a 

hundred years before Hitler, was already in that village.  My family goes way back.  I 

don't know now the history exactly.  And I had a very big family. 
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Q:  And what happened to their businesses if nobody wanted to associate with them 

anymore?  What happened to their livelihood? 

A:  The people didn't buy from you, whatever business people were in. 

Q:  So how did it affect your father? 

A:  Well, my father    matter of fact, his father had that business already going back 

maybe two generations, I don't know. 

Q:  Yes.  

A:  And people, they didn't come to buy from you anymore. 

Q:  So that happened to him? 

A:  Happened to everybody over there at that time.  They had to close up or whatever. 

Q:  Did you stay    where was your Realschule?  When you say you went to Real, what 

town was that in? 

A:  The name was Kitzingen.   

Q:  Kitzingen?   

A:  Was also in Bavaria about 20 miles from my home town. 

Q:  And when Hitler came to power and you left the Realschule, did you stay in 

Kitzingen     

A:  No. 

Q:     did you continue living there? 

A:  I left    I left not because they threw me out.  Because you know what I mean, I wasn't 

attacked or anything, but persecuted. 

Q:  You were persecuted? 
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A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Tell me in what way.  

A:  Well, the different ways.  I wasn't hit or anything, but they didn't talk to me, the 

students. 

Q:  And the teachers?   

A:  There was one teacher, he was a big Nazi, one teacher.  Matter of fact, he was 

teaching us our class, but he was okay, I mean, personally, he had to as a teacher. 

Q:  So what subject    do you remember what the subject he taught? 

A:  History, for one thing. 

Q:  Oh, dear.  

A:  And he taught also some other minor subjects. 

Q:  Did he single you out for some kind of    

A:  No, no. 

Q:  No? 

A:  No. 

Q:  So he didn't mistreat you in class? 

A:  I had no personal experience that I was persecuted really. 

Q:  So     

A:  Like some people they were later on    because I left early, not early enough though    

that were attacked.  Matter of fact, I remember yet the thing I was living there, we walked 

on the sidewalk in that little town. 

Q:  In Kitzingen? 
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A:  No. 

Q:  In Luelsfeld? 

A:  Yeah    no.  I worked for an uncle in Gerolzhofen.   

Q:  Where? 

A:  Gerolzhofen. 

Q:  Gerolzhofen?  

A:  Yeah.   

Q:  You worked for an uncle there? 

A:  Yeah, after school. 

Q:  Okay?  

A:  And when we walked on the sidewalk, for instance, if someone came, we had to get 

off the sidewalk, being a Jew.  We had a swimming pool; no Jews allowed. 

Q:  And people could tell if you were Jewish or if you weren't Jewish? 

A:  They knew everybody in that little town.  Everybody knows    I mean     

Q:  Did you ever have to wear a yellow star? 

A:  No.   

Q:  No?  

A:  That was after.  I was lucky.  I got    I got out late, but I    still early enough. 

Q:  Well, it was    did your parents or your family ever talk at home about all of the 

political changes that were happening?  Did you discuss Hitler at home?   

A:  No.  We knew    everybody knew it.  I knew it.  My parents knew it.  My brother 

knew it.  So what's there to discuss about it?  
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Q:  Okay.  

A:  You know.  Everybody was persecuted. 

Q:  How did life continue after you left Realschule and you had one more year in a local 

school? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  And that local school as located where?  In which place? 

A:  In a small town where I worked. 

Q:  So that was     

A:  When I left    when I left Realschule, I had to    I had to finish school.  You had to 

finish ten years of school.  Like here, you have to    a certain amount of    I    I had a 

school    I had to go to school for another year.  And I worked for an uncle. 

Q:  The place where you went to school for this last year, what was it called? 

A:  The school?  The name of the school?  

Q:  No, the name of the village or the town? 

A:  Gerolzhofen. 

Q:  Gerolzhofen, okay, Gerolzhofen.  

A:  And where I was born was 5 miles away from Gerolzhofen. 

Q:  Oh, I see, so it was very close? 

A:  Very close.   

Q:  Did you     

A:  Then I had an uncle, he lived in Bamberg.  It's 30 miles away. 

Q:  And which uncle did you work for after school when    from Gerolzhofen? 
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A:  A brother of my father. 

Q:  And he was in the same kind of business? 

A:  Same kind of business. 

Q:  I see.  And did you live at home then in Luelsfeld or did you live in Gerolzhofen? 

A:  I lived in Gerolzhofen. 

Q:  With your uncle? 

A:  Yeah, with my uncle. 

Q:  What are some of the other things that you remember happening in this first year or 

two after Hitler comes to power?  

A:  Well, I would say I remember everything.  You ask me a question. 

Q:  Okay.  You finished that one year.  Did you have Abitur?  Did you pass your Abitur 

or     

A:  No, I couldn't.  I left before.   

Q:  I see.  

A:  End of    end of Jews, end of Jewish people in school.  But they never attacked me or 

anything, but when Hitler came to    everything changed when Hitler came to power.  

That was in May '33. 

Q:  In May '33? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  I thought it was in November '33, but I could be wrong.  

A:  In the spring of '33, put it that way. 
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Q:  And what else in your life changed?  You couldn't go to public parks, you couldn't go 

swimming, you had to walk in the street not on the sidewalk? 

A:  Couldn't go to a movie     

Q:  Couldn't go to a movie    

A:     in that little town. 

Q:     in that little town.   

How did your father continue feeding his family if people didn't buy from him anymore? 

A:  Well, the same thing was with the uncle that I worked for, business went down and 

they had to give up the business eventually.  They couldn't make a living anymore, I 

guess. 

Q:  So how did they    how did they eat? 

A:  Well, they had some money saved, I guess.  You lived from your savings, like I live 

from my savings now as a retired person. 

Q:  True.  If somebody had some savings, maybe then they could do it.  

A:  You have some savings.  You had Social Security.  That's what I live on. 

Q:  Well, your father then, did he have to also give up his business?  

A:  Well, that's after I left.  All I know is, people didn't buy anymore.  They didn't come 

to the store. 

Q:  Did you     

A:  They didn't give a permit to sell merchandise.  In order to sell as a salesman outside 

the villages, you had to have a permit.  It's different.  Here you can go and sell, anybody. 

Q:  And there it wasn't possible? 
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A:  They didn't get the permit.  That was the end of it. 

Q:  Did you have any acquaintances amongst the gentiles in the village who became 

Nazis? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  And I assume their behavior changed towards you? 

A:  Immediately.  Immediately.  I was in high school, the last year of high school when 

Hitler came to power in '33.  I happened to be the only Jewish fellow in that class.  There 

were not many Jewish people around there.  And everything changed.  I was isolated.   

Q:  How did things continue in 1934 and '35 and '36?  What were you doing?  What were    

how did you occupy yourself?  

A:  Personally? 

Q:  Personally.  

A:  Well, at that time I left school.  I worked for an uncle. 

Q:  Okay.  How long did you work for him? 

A:  Until I emigrated. 

Q:  Oh, so for five years? 

A:  Yeah, five.  Until '38. 

Q:  Tell me, did anything else happen during those years that     

A:  Many things happened during those years from '33 to '38. 

Q:  Okay.  Can you tell me about some of them?  

A:  Yes.   

Q:  As they affected you?   
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A:  Jews were persecuted, is that what you want to know, for instance?  

Q:  Yes.  I want to know about your family, about how things    what things happened in 

your family, your father and your mother as well as your uncles and larger, you know, 

circle of relatives.  How did it affect your folks? 

A:  In general, everybody went through the same thing.  Either they took your business 

away or you had to give it up.  So a lot of people, if they had a chance, they emigrated to 

different countries.  So many came here, like I.  Some went to Israel.  Some went to 

South America, I remember.  They left Germany. 

Q:  How come your family did not? 

A:  I don't know. 

Q:  How did it come also that     

A:  Not all the families left.  Some had relatives in other countries.  I mean, it's not so 

easy just to leave, you know.  If you    if you had no money    you were not allowed to 

bring any money out.  You couldn't    if you were caught bringing money out, they put 

you in jail. 

Q:  Did anybody from your family get arrested? 

A:  Yes. 

Q:  Who? 

A:  An uncle of mine I know. 

Q:  And what was he arrested for? 

A:  Being Jewish. 

Q:  Oh, just being Jewish? 
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A:  Just being Jewish. 

Q:  And do you remember when this took place?  Were you still in Germany? 

A:  Yeah.  He was arrested, I would say, about 1936. 

Q:  And was this the uncle that you worked for? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  So he lost his business and then he was arrested? 

A:  No, he didn't lose his business at that time.  He was arrested.  But the business was 

here already, went down.   

Q:  Okay.   

A:  And then later on he sold the business. 

Q:  After he was released? 

A:  No, later on. 

Q:  Later on.  Later on.   

So did you    were you there when he was arrested? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  How did it take place?  Can you describe it for me? 

A:  Because he was    he was Jewish. 

Q:  I understand.  Did you    did soldiers come in?  Did people you know come in to 

arrest him? 

A:  The police came. 

Q:  How did they behave? 

A:  Excuse me? 
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Q:  How did they behave when they came in? 

A:  What can I say?  They were anti Jewish, tough.    

Q:  Were they young people? 

A:  No, all kind    not old people.  You know, like here the police you have younger and 

older people. 

Q:  So it was a mix? 

A:  Yeah, you know. 

Q:  And they took him away and how long was he arrested for?   

A:  Who? 

Q:  Your uncle.  

A:  At that time two weeks. 

Q:  In Gerolzhofen? 

A:  Yeah, Gerolzhofen. 

Q:  And then they let him go? 

A:  They let him go.  That was early.  It was in 1935, something like that. 

Q:  Did he talk about what happened to him? 

A:  But then later on he was sent to a concentration camp and killed. 

Q:  What concentration camp was that? 

A:  Dachau.  But there were other places, too. 

Q:  What was his name, this uncle? 

A:  Hermann. 

Q:  Hermann.  Hermann Kohn? 
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A:  Yeah.  And I had an uncle in Bamberg.  His name was Benno. 

Q:  Benno Kohn? 

A:  And he died in the Holocaust too with his wife. 

Q:  And what    how did they die? 

A:  In the concentration camp.  They gassed him probably. 

Q:  Do you know which one, which camp it was? 

A:  I don't know.  Maybe Dachau, I guess.   

Q:  You don't    you don't know that?   

A:  I mean, there were several.   

Q:  Yeah.   

A:  Somebody knows    I know the names of the camps, of some of the camps. 

Q:  No, I'm concerned     

A:  But I don't know which camp. 

Q:  How did it come to be that you decided to leave and the rest of your family stayed?  

Tell me how did that happen? 

A:  Well, I would have left even earlier, but you had to have a visa.  They called it 

Bürgschaft.  Ever heard that name, Bürgschaft?   

Q:  No, I didn't.   

A:  Somebody had to vouch for you.  You can come here as a visitor to America for a 

certain length of time.  Then you have to go back. 

Q:  That's right.  That's right.  
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A:  But if you have a Bürgschaft, that somebody vouches for me    that's what it amounts 

to    I could immigrate     

Q:  And where     

A:     to this country, for instance. 

Q:  Okay.  So did you look for somebody who could do that for you? 

A:  What happened is I had a relative in Holland. 

Q:  Okay.  

A:  In the other business.  And he got sick.  So he wanted me to come to Holland.  That 

was way before Hitler came to    Hitler took over Holland, you know that?  

Q:  Yes, of course. 

A:  And Belgium and Luxembourg and France eventually.  And he wanted me to come to 

work for him.  And I came    went to Holland. 

Q:  So you left Germany to help your uncle out in Holland? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  What was your uncle's business? 

A:  Bicycles. 

Q:  Bicycles.  Well, Holland, of course.  

A:  Yes, everybody bicycles. 

Q:  Where did he live? 

A:  In Amsterdam. 

Q:  He lived in Amsterdam? 

A:  Yeah. 
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Q:  You went from a very small Jewish community to a city that had a large Jewish 

community? 

A:  Yeah, correct.  And I was there for, let's say, about a year in all.  But they never gave 

me a permit to work there in Holland.  Not like you come here and you get a job and 

that's it.  Because they have to make sure they have no unemployment     

Q:  Of course.   

A:     because too many people came and takes jobs away. 

Q:  So you were in Holland for a year and then what happened? 

A:  They wouldn't let me stay there. 

Q:  So were you going to have to go back to Germany? 

A:  I had to report every week to the police. 

Q:  To the Dutch police? 

A:  The Dutch police.  They were nice people, I mean, not the German people.  And I had 

to report to them.  And they wanted me to get out, period.  So I said, I don't have an 

affidavit.  So finally I got an affidavit, I don't know who gave me the affidavit, from here. 

Q:  So what was this affidavit?  What kind of a document was that? 

A:  To vouch for me, for the person. 

Q:  So you had to find somebody else from another country to do that? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Okay.  Who did you find?  Was it another relative? 

A:  No.  I don't know how that worked out. 

Q:  But you didn't want to go back to Germany after that year? 
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A:  Never, never.  I wouldn't have been here today if I would have gone back. 

Q:  That's right.   

Did you try to convince your parents and others to come with you?  

A:  Well, my parents, I don't think they would have come so easily.  They were born 

there, you know, in Germany. 

Q:  So you never had this discussion to stay or to go or anything     

A:  Matter of fact, to make it easier for you to understand, when I was 12 years old    

when I was ten years old, I left my family. 

Q:  Really? 

A:  Yeah.  Ten years old.  I went to high school, the equivalent to high school, in 

Germany.  By the way, I didn't have that school where I come from.  It was a little 

village.  So I had to go to the next town to get that education. 

Q:  And so you    it was kind of already taken as something normal that a child would live 

away from home? 

A:  Many children, many parents who could afford to send them to a better school, that's 

what it amounts to.  So in a better school, it's the equivalent, I learned English and French 

at that time, chemistry.  We had all the subjects in that school, but not the school in 

Luelsfeld.  We were in the school just for four years. 

Q:  Did you like studying?  Did you like school? 

A:  I wasn't crazy about it.  I was not a bad student, but I didn't study enough, I guess. 

Q:  So it didn't    it was okay, but nothing special? 

A:  Nothing special. 
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Q:  Okay. 

A:  I didn't want to make a career out of anything. 

Q:  Well, that's kind of young to have to make a mind up about what kind of career.  

A:  I went to that school when I was ten years old already. 

Q:  The Realschule? 

A:  Yeah, from    from public school.  That's what you do in Germany, in Europe I guess.  

You go up to go to public school for four years and then you go to a high school.  But 

little villages where I come from, they didn't have that high school      

Q:  Right?  

A:     which is the equivalent to a Realschule, what we called them. 

Q:  So when you were in Holland now and it's 1938 and 1939     

A:  Not '39.  I was in Holland only less than a year. 

Q:  Less than a year?  So    

A:  They wouldn't give me permission to work there. 

Q:  So how were you successful in leaving Holland?  How did you manage to go from 

Holland, the Netherlands to    I take it you came to America? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  How did you manage that? 

A:  Well, I    number one, I had to get an affidavit.  You couldn't come here. 

Q:  I see, that's where you got the affidavit? 

A:  You could come here as visitor, but you cannot come here and stay for    for a year or 

two years.   

http://collections.ushmm.org 
Contact reference@ushmm.org for further information about this collection

The following transcript is the result of a recorded interview. The recording is the primary source document, not this transcript.  It has 
not been checked for spelling nor verified for accuracy.  This document should not be quoted or used without first checking it against  
the interview. 
 
The interview is part of the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum's collection of oral testimonies.  Information about access and 
usage rights can be found in the catalog record.

 
This is a verbatim transcript of spoken word. It is not the primary source, and it has not been checked for spelling or accuracy. 



Interview with Sol Kohn  35 

So someone gave me an affidavit. 

Q:  And where did you come?  To which place did you come? 

A:  Excuse me? 

Q:  When you left Holland where did you go? 

A:  To New York. 

Q:  Did the person who gave you the affidavit live in New York? 

A:  I never met that person. 

Q:  You never met them?  

A:  No, never.  But somebody gave me    I really, I don't know how it happened. 

Q:  So when you     

A:  I had relatives here, but they wouldn't give me an affidavit. 

Q:  Really? 

A:  Yeah.  I had    sorry to say, my mother had two brothers here and a sister.  They didn't 

do anything for the family. 

Q:  Oh.  

A:  Sadly. 

Q:  Well, it's kind of bitter.  

A:  Yes. 

Q:  So did they help you when you came to the United States? 

A:  No, no. 

Q:  Nothing, huh? 

A:  I came    I didn't come from Germany to America.  I went first to Holland. 
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Q:  That's right.  

A:  I told you that. 

Q:  That's right.  

A:  And in November '38, I came here to America. 

Q:  So where did you live when you came here? 

A:  In New York. 

Q:  I mean, but     

A:  New York City. 

Q:  Yeah, but who did you live with?  Did you live with a family?   

A:  With a family.  Fortunately, I got a job after a week. 

Q:  What was the job?  What was the job?  

A:  I worked in a    I was in the receiving department.  There was a firm Klein.  Ever 

heard of S. Klein?  

Q:  I have heard of Klein, yeah.  

A:  They only went out of business like ten or 12 years ago or 15 years ago.  I got a job 

after a week.  I was lucky. 

Q:  Where was the business located? 

A:  Fourteenth Street or Union Square. 

Q:  And what kind of family did you live with?  Were they acquaintances or     

A:  Yeah, I heard of these people from Germany and I lived with them.  I had a nice room 

on Amsterdam Avenue, 181st Street. 

Q:  Wow.  
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A:  I remember that. 

Q:  And did you go to school at all or did you go straight to work? 

A:  I should have gone to school here. 

Q:  Uh huh.  

A:  But I had to work.  I could have gone to night school. 

Q:  When you were    okay, so you're over here in the United States.  What happened 

with your brother and your sister, did they also leave or tell me about them.  

A:  My brother, he also left later on and he went to Holland. 

Q:  Okay.  Also? 

A:  I don't know    I don't know how it happened because I was in Holland too and they 

wouldn't let me stay there.   

Q:  Yeah.   

A:  Because    but the rest of my family, my parents and my sister, they remain in 

Germany and they died in the Holocaust. 

Q:  Did you    when you were first in New York, were you writing letters back and forth 

with your family? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  And     

A:  I have the letters here yet. 

Q:  You still have those letters? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Wow.  
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A:  I cannot look at them.  Too sad. 

Q:  Were there many such letters? 

A:  Excuse me?  

Q:  Did you write often?  Did they write often? 

A:  Not that often. 

Q:  And did they tell you    did they write about how things were continuing to change for 

them in Germany? 

A:  Well, everybody knew about it, too.   The sad part is my mother had two brothers and 

a sister and they wouldn't do anything for my parents.  Nothing.  If I    and I had    I 

couldn't give an affidavit.  I had no paid income. 

Q:  Had you gone to ask your mother's brother and brothers and sisters     

A:  Yes, yes. 

Q:     to help and they said no? 

A:  They didn't say that.  They said they would help. 

Q:  They said they would?  

A:  They didn't do anything.  Nothing. 

Q:  At some point did your parents write that they wanted to leave Germany? 

A:  I imagine. 

Q:  Oh, but you don't have a letter that said, we'd like to leave Germany?  No.  How long 

did the letters continue, to what year? 

A:  Well, I came here in '38.  In '42 I went to American army, World War II.  You're 

familiar with that?   
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Q:  Um hum.   

A:  So I corresponded with them for three, four years. 

Q:  Until you went into the army? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  And then after that, no more correspondence? 

A:  They were killed at that time, at that time. 

Q:  How did you find out? 

A:  How I find out?  From some people who knew about it in that village, in that 

neighborhood. 

Q:  So were there Germans non Jews     

A:  German people. 

Q:     who wrote to you and told you? 

A:  Yeah.  I    matter of fact, there was a family who corresponded with me even after the 

war, after, afterwards. 

Q:  And they let you know what had happened to your father and your mother and so on? 

A:  Yes.  They told me.  Matter of fact, I went to Germany with my wife when she was 

still alive at that time to visit the home town, the village I was born.  People were very 

nice.  Not everybody was a Nazi, you know, or a Jew hater.  But many were. 

Q:  Was that a shock when you    when things changed overnight when Hitler came to 

power, was that a shock to you? 

A:  For everybody.  The Jewish people at that time, if they had a chance, they left. 
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Q:  Did you ever    when    is    this is a kind of strange kind of question to ask, but is 

there a point where you stopped feeling German? 

A:  Yes. 

Q:  When was that point? 

A:  At that time. 

Q:  At that time? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Okay. 

A:  At that time. 

Q:  It was like, I no longer belong here.  This is no longer my country.  Was that it? 

A:  Yes.  They were anti Jewish, so that's the end. 

Q:  Tell me    

A:  I had    I once counted in the thirties, I would say about 35 people who died in the 

Holocaust, uncles, aunts, cousins. 

Q:  From your family alone? 

A:  From my family, on my mother's side, father's side.  I remember three uncles and 

three aunts, cousins, second cousins.  I had some cousins who came out like I did.  My 

sister, for instance, she didn't come out.  She perished in the Holocaust. 

Q:  She was just a young girl.  

A:  She was five years younger than me. 

Q:  Do you know where they were deported to? 

A:  Dachau. 
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Q:  Your parents were deported to Dachau? 

A:  You heard that name?  

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  Matter of fact, my wife and I    I'm going back 12 years, we went and took a trip to 

Germany.  And we were stationed there in Munich.  We just went back not to see 

Germany, really, but we went to Europe.  We were in Switzerland, actually.  But I rented 

a car and went to Germany. 

Q:  To see where you were born? 

A:  And I went to my home town, the village I was born in. 

Q:  And did it look different? 

A:  And I wanted to go and see Dachau, but fortunately    unfortunately, it was closed that 

day.  I couldn't take another trip. 

Q:  Did you see your own home town in Luelsfeld? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Did it look any different? 

A:  Same. 

Q:  Same? 

A:  The neighbors were very nice.  Not all    not all Germans were Nazis.  There were a 

lot of    the younger people were. 

Q:  At that time? 

A:  They were in the SS.  You heard about it?  

Q:  Yes, yes.  
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A:  You heard about that?  

Q:  Yes.   

So tell me    what was my thought here? 

The German family that wrote to you, did they describe how your parents disappeared?  I 

mean     

A:  No. 

Q:     did they describe the circumstances? 

A:  I didn't ask them, okay, because I knew.  They didn't have to write me and I didn't 

have to ask them.  They were    one day they were told in that village to go to a town 

Würzburg.  You ever heard of it?  

Q:  Würzburg, um hum.  

A:  Oh, you heard of it?  They were the next biggest town.  And I came from a very small 

village.  And they sent them to a concentration camp and gassed them.  That's all I know.  

That was the end. 

Q:  And your brother, what happened with him? 

A:  My brother?  

Q:  He went to Holland? 

A:  He went to Holland. 

Q:  And then what happened? Let's cut for a minute. 

(Proceedings interrupted by a phone call.)  

A:  I lost maybe 30 people in my family.  Grandparents, uncles, aunts, cousins, all total. 
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Q:  I can't imagine what it's like to not know what happens to people, to realize that your 

family has been taken away and you are so far away.  I can't imagine what kind of a 

feeling that is. 

A:  The sad part is, I had family here and they wouldn't give me an affidavit to bring 

them out.  Terrible.  That's the terrible thing. 

Q:  Did someone give your brother an affidavit eventually? 

A:  My brother, he    he went to Holland.  How he got there, I don't know. 

Q:  How did he leave there?  How did he leave Holland? 

A:  I don't know how he got there. 

Q:  Okay.  

A:  Because I was in Holland, but they wouldn't let me stay in Holland. 

Q:  Of course.  Of course.   

Did he stay the whole time in Holland or did he also come to America? 

A:  Didn't come to America. 

Q:  Ah, did he stay then in Holland during the war? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  So he must have hidden? 

A:  Well, I don't know too much about it, but we corresponded.  But he went to Sweden 

then later on.  He was in a kibbutz, like.  Do you know what a kibbutz is?  

Q:  Uh huh.  So he went to Israel? 

A:  No, he didn't go to Israel.  But the last time I    I heard or I know about, he went from 

Holland to Sweden. 
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Q:  And then what happened with him? 

A:  He died. 

Q:  During the war? 

A:  No later, later. 

Q:  Oh, I see.  I see.  

A:  He was in the kibbutz like. 

Q:  In Sweden? 

A:  In Holland. 

Q:  There was a kibbutz in Holland? 

A:  It's like a kibbutz. 

Q:  Like a kibbutz?  And then    

A:  An organization, a Jewish organization let's call it.  

Q:  And     

A:  And they probably sent him to Sweden to save the children     

Q:  That's right.  

A:     the people. 

Q:  Okay.  And in Sweden    when    after    did he survive the war?   

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Okay.  Did he ever come to the United States? 

A:  No. 

Q:  Did you ever visit him in Sweden? 

A:  No. 
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Q:  Did he stay in Sweden, your brother? 

A:  The last I heard of him, he was in Sweden.  But that's about it. 

Q:  I see.  I see.  So he didn't die in the Holocaust, but he nevertheless died after the war? 

A:  Yeah.  I imagine.  Because he was in Sweden, he was not in Germany anymore.  But 

my sister died in Germany.  She never got out of Germany.  But the fact is that, I'm sorry 

I have to say that, I personally couldn't do very much.  And I depended on my family.  I 

had uncles and aunts.  They didn't do anything.  That's the sad part.  That's the sad part.   

I have an uncle here he came here, let's say, about 1880.  He was at that time maybe 70 

years old.  And he could have give me an affidavit for my family.  They didn't do 

anything. 

Q:  That's very bitter.  

A:  That's the sad part. 

Q:  That's very sad, very sad.    

A:  You know. 

Q:  Yeah.  Hang on just a second.   

(Brief pause.)  

Q:  Absolute sense.  I want to talk about your army service? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  So were you drafted or did you      

A:  Drafted. 

Q:  You were drafted.  Tell me about your U.S. army experience.  Where did they send 

you for training? 
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A:  I was in the 28th Infantry.  First I was drafted. 

Q:  Okay.  

A:  I don't know exactly    I can tell you what year when I think about it. 

Q:  Okay.   

A:  And I had my basic training.  And after three, four months I wents to Europe. 

Q:  In 1944? 

A:  Way before. 

Q:  Way before? 

A:  Yeah.  Before the invasion. 

Q:  So where did you go, to England? 

A:  First to England, yeah, then Scotland and then to France. 

Q:  Tell me what was your    what was your job within    within     

A:  I was actually in the infantry.  I was trained to be in the infantry and also trained to be 

an interrogator, because I speak German. 

Q:  I was going to ask about that, yeah.  

A:  So what happened is, one day they needed German speaking interrogators.  And I 

ended up in the military government.  That was my luck. 

Q:  And this is     

A:  Otherwise I wouldn't be here today.  In the division. 

Q:  That's right.  

A:  Still in front.  And I interrogated mostly civilians at that time.  It's    it's    I was with 

the 28th Infantry Division. 
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Q:  So the 28th Infantry, did that    did they take part of the invasion of Normandy     

A:  No, not them. 

Q:  or did they come later? 

A:  I personally came in like    I can tell you about it, but just let me think    like five days 

after the invasion, I came in already. 

Q:  Okay. 

A:  The American army just had the beachhead. 

Q:  Yes.  

A:  And I was like, what do you call it, ready to be assigned to a unit. 

Q:  Got it, okay.  You were in some ways in reserve? 

A:  A replacement.   

Q:  Okay.   

A:  But I had a lot of training in this country before I went overseas.  I went to army 

school, intelligence school and in Camp Ritchie. 

Q:  Oh, you went to Camp Ritchie? 

A:  You heard about that?  

Q:  Of course I've heard about that.   

A:  How do you know about that?  

Q:  Because I have interviewed some people who are Ritchie boys.   

A:  Oh.  

Q:  So you're a Ritchie boy? 

A:  Yeah, the 13th class. 
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Q:  The 13th class? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  So when the army realized that you spoke German like a native     

A:  That's why I went to Ritchie, because I spoke German. 

Q:  I see.  I see. 

A:  I was inducted into the army and had my basic training and then they saw I speak 

German, I guess. 

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  So they gave me different training.  After    after my     

Q:  Basic training.  

A:     basic training. 

Q:  What was that different training?  What did it consist of? 

A:  In Ritchie what kind of     

Q:  Training it was, uh huh.  

A:  Army of occupation.  They called it intelligence camp.  I don't know how intelligent 

you had to be.  But it's different from    from    the usually    the usual training. 

Q:  Yeah.  But then you met probably with lots of other people     

A:  Sure.  

Q:     who were in the same situation? 

A:  It was mostly Europeans in Ritchie at that time.   

Q:  Yeah.   

A:  We had to speak German otherwise they wouldn't send you there. 

http://collections.ushmm.org 
Contact reference@ushmm.org for further information about this collection

The following transcript is the result of a recorded interview. The recording is the primary source document, not this transcript.  It has 
not been checked for spelling nor verified for accuracy.  This document should not be quoted or used without first checking it against  
the interview. 
 
The interview is part of the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum's collection of oral testimonies.  Information about access and 
usage rights can be found in the catalog record.

 
This is a verbatim transcript of spoken word. It is not the primary source, and it has not been checked for spelling or accuracy. 



Interview with Sol Kohn  49 

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  They had in mind that I would be used in the army of occupation, being either 

interrogator or being intelligence. 

Q:  Okay.  And you ended up being an interrogator? 

A:  An interrogator. 

Q:  Okay. 

A:  I would say an interrogator, yeah. 

Q:  Do you remember the very first person you interrogated? 

A:  Not the first very    not the very first    well, I had mostly to do with civilians.   

Q:  Okay.   

A:  It's not    I was also trained to interrogate prisoners of war.  That actually that was the 

first thing they taught me, how to interrogate    there was a special code    Camp Ritchie, 

you heard about that?  

Q:  Uh huh.   

A:  That was strictly for German speaking people. 

Q:  So tell me, how do you have to    what are some of the rules in interrogating a 

prisoner of war? 

A:  There are no rules.  

Q:  What kind of training did you have? 

A:  Get the information that you want. 

Q:  Okay.  
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A:  All a solder had to do, like I was told, in case we get captured, name, rank and serial 

number.  That's all you have to give, no other information.  Name, rank and serial 

number. 

Q:  And when you captured a German solder, he also just had to give name, rank and 

serial number and your job was to find out more?   

A:  Yeah.  So you tried to get information.  But I didn't do that very long.  Because when 

I was with the 28th Infantry division     

Q:  Yes? 

A:     who came in, in France. 

Q:  Okay.  

A:  World War II.   

Q:  Yes, that's right.   

A:  You know about that?  

Q:  Yes.  

A:  When we hit Germany, they needed very badly German speaking people.  And I was 

with the military government then in the division.  I dealt mostly with civilians then. 

Q:  And do you ever have    do you have any memories of some of the interrogations that 

you did?   

A:  Yeah, I still remember the German people. 

Q:  Tell me about that.  

A:  I tried to get information from them. 

Q:  Were you successful? 
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A:  Sometimes.  Well, most of the time, I would say. 

Q:  Okay.  

A:  If you talk right they answered you, you know. 

Q:  What is the right way to talk?  I'm trying to find out your method.  

A:  Well, the method is    I was trained for that.  I was in Camp Ritchie. 

Q:  Sure.  

A:  How to interrogate people. 

Q:  I mean, are you pleasant or are you distant?  Do you act with authority and fear or do 

you use sweetness? 

A:  Well, the way I look at it now, the experience I had, they were glad when the war was 

over.  You know?  

Q:  The people? 

A:  The people. 

Q:  Yeah. 

A:  So that helped.  So if you talk right, you got some information out of them.  But there 

were two ways    there was interrogating prisoners of war or civilians.  I had experience 

with both of them. 

Q:  How were they different?  How did    how were they different from each other?  

A:  You have no __________. 

Q:  Yeah? 

A:  At one time sent some soldiers.  They were arrogant.  And some were glad the war 

was over and they gave you information.  And then you interrogate civilians is a different 
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story.  Because I worked first with the infantry intelligence department and later I was 

with the    I dealt with civilians.  You know what I mean? 

Q:  Yeah.  Were civilians easier to interrogate?   

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Okay.  Did you go    when you were part of the military government, where were you 

based, in Germany? 

A:  Where I was what?  

Q:  Where were you based?  Where did they take you? 

A:  I was with the division. 

Q:  Okay.  Where did the division go?   

A:  Division through Normandy. 

Q:  Um hum.  And then? 

A:  Through France, through Germany. 

Q:  What part?  What parts of Germany? 

A:  Central Germany I would say. 

Q:  So it would be like Frankfurt and Cologne     

A:  Yeah.  Not far from Frankfurt.  Near Mannheim.  Ever head of Mannheim?  

Q:  Oh, yeah, Mannheim. 

A:  You're not German, right?  

Q:  No, but I have been there.  I lived there.  So I know Mannheim.  

A:  You've been in Mannheim?  

Q:  Um hum.  
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A:  I stayed near Mannheim. 

Q:  Near Mannheim, I see.  

A:  The town was    I have it written down, but I can't think of it right now. 

Q:  Did you get to Luelsfeld when you were there as part of the military government? 

A:  Not at that time.  But after the war, my wife and I, we took a trip to Europe. 

Q:  But that's many years later, right? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  So at that time      

A:  I would have liked to go and I didn't want to like to go.  Because what would I do 

there?  I can't arrest the Germans.  And I don't want to find out who was a Nazi.  I get in 

trouble, you know.  But I went to Germany twice more afterwards. 

Q:  We can talk about that in a minute, but right now it's as your part of the military 

government that I'm interested in. 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  When you were already working there in that    did you know that your parents had 

survived? 

A:  When I went there?  

Q:  When you were part of the military operation     

A:  No. 

Q:     the American    you didn't know then? 

A:  No. 

Q:  No.  Were you looking to find out what had happened? 
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A:  I made a very bad mistake.  I was with the military government, I told you that?  

Q:  Yes.  

A:  At that time what I'm talking about now, they came around one day and asked me if I 

want to go to the town I was born in.  And I should have gone.  They would have give me 

a jeep.  It was something unusual, you know?  

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  But I    I knew my parents wouldn't be alive or any part of my family.  So I didn't go.  

But then about 20 years ago, I went with my wife to Germany. 

Q:  So that would have been already the '80s, the '90s? 

A:  We are not talking about wartime now.  We are talking about later on. 

Q:  Yeah, decades later.  

A:  Yeah.  So they gave me the opportunity. 

Q:  But it was too difficult? 

A:  I think that was very nice that they asked me.  I was with the 28th Infantry Division, 

First Army. 

Q:  Did you ever interrogate anybody who was a very high, important official, either in 

the military or on the civilian side? 

A:  Arrested somebody or met somebody?  

Q:  Um hum.  

A:  Not really.  Not the top people. 

Q:  Any middle level type of people? 

A:  Well, when I was with the 28th Infantry Division I dealt mostly with civilians.   
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Q:  Okay.  Okay.   

A:  Military government, assigned to the division.  Every division had a military 

government section. 

Q:  I see.  

A:  And I worked for a major.  I was his interpreter. 

Q:  What was the major's name, do you remember? 

A:  Yeah.  Stanton. 

Q:  Stanton? 

A:  I remember that.  Major Stanton.  He lived in Syracuse, I know that.  He was born 

there. 

Q:  Okay.  How is it    your military experience in general, would you say it was a 

positive one?  Did you feel    if you stopped being German when Hitler came to power 

and everything changed, is there a point when you became an American? 

A:  I was an American. 

Q:  You felt already an American? 

A:  Yeah.  Because you entered the army, a few months they made me a citizen. 

Q:  That's what I was going to ask you.  

A:  You had to live in this country for five years to become a citizen.  But I was drafted in 

the army.  I came here in '38.  I was drafted in '42.  So I wasn't here five years.  But I 

sooner got in the army a few months later, I became a citizen.  I was sworn in, in 

Michigan, I remember that.  In Kalamazoo, Michigan.   

Q:  You were sworn in, in Kalamazoo, Michigan?  
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A:  Yeah.  I became a citizen. 

Q:  You became a citizen? 

A:  A citizen there. 

Q:  Was there basic training? 

A:  There was the camps there.   

Q:  Aha, I see.   

A:  An army camp where I had my basic training. 

Q:  Okay.  And    

A:  So one day, they came around, put your uniform on.  I didn't know what they want, 

when I was sworn in, they told me to. 

Q:  So you were already    you were an American? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  You were an American? 

A:  I became American in the army. 

Q:  Yeah, yeah.  And inside too? 

A:  I was an American the day I came here. 

Q:  Got it.  Got it.   

So how long were you, as part of the military government operation, in Germany after the 

war? 

A:  I was with 28th Infantry Division.   

Q:  Sure.   
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A:  But being that I speak German, they picked me right away    not right, away a little 

later.  And they assigned me to the military government section.  Every division had a 

military government section. 

Q:  Um hum.  

A:  In Germany. 

Q:  In Germany? 

A:  Going    going to Germany. 

Q:  Did you ever leave Mannheim and move to    with the 28th Infantry    to another part 

of Germany or were you only based in Mannheim? 

A:  No, I came in, in France, all the ways from France. 

Q:  Okay.  And then after France you went to Germany? 

A:  Into Germany. 

Q:  And then you stayed in Mannheim? 

A:  For a long time. 

Q:  For a long time? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Okay.  Did you finish your service     

A:  Even after the war I stayed in Mannheim. 

Q:  Oh, really? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  So you didn't go back to the United States after the war? 

A:  My division, the 28th Infantry Division     
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Q:  Yes? 

A:     you know about division and all that?  

Q:  That's right.  

A:  Were sent to    to the United States after the war, I imagine to go to Japan eventually.  

And I    I wanted to stay in the military.  I had enough.  You know, I had enough, enough 

fighting.  I wasn't always in the military government.  First I was in the infantry.  I was in 

Company E, Second Battalion. 

Q:  Did you see    did you    were you involved in battles? 

A:  In battle.  Saw plenty solders killed, German and American soldiers. 

Q:  Did you take part in any of the    were these battles in France or in Belgium or     

A:  In France.  Yeah.  I was lucky I got cut out of it, you know.  So when    if I wouldn't 

have spoken German, I would have been killed probably because my division, the 28th    

you can read up on that    the 28th Infantry they were there.  But     

Q:  Was it the Battle of the Bulge? 

A:  The Battle of the Bulge. 

Q:  They were in the Battle of the Bulge.  I wanted to ask, you know, yeah.  So it was     

A:  I was still in the 28th Division, but I was already military government. 

Q:  Got it.  

A:  Actually, I was an interpreter to a major who had that military gover    every regiment 

had a military government section.  A division has three regiments.   

Q:  Okay.   
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A:  I was with 109th Infantry Regiment.  And I was an interpreter to the major.  But I 

dealt with civilians. 

Q:  And when did you return to the United States? 

A:  After the war. 

Q:  And after the war meant     

A:  You mean after the war?  

Q:  Like two months after the war or a year after     

A:  No.  You mean after the war ended? 

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  The war ended     

Q:  In May.  

A:  Yeah, around that time.  And I applied for civilian job there, a civilian job with the 

government as an interpreter. 

Q:  Got it.  Got it.  

A:  I wasn't married.  I had no family here.  So what's the hurry to come back?  

Q:  Exactly.  Exactly.  

A:  Right?  I had no family here, no immediate family. 

Q:  Did you feel lonely? 

A:  In a way, sure.  So I said to myself    not that I want to make a career out of it.  So 

they needed interpreters.  And I wanted to be an    actually, I wanted to be in the 

Nuremberg trial.  I didn't know too much about it then, but I would have liked to do that, 

be an interpreter. 
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Q:  And did you make it to be     

A:  No.  Not too many. 

Q:  Not too many people did, yeah.  

A:  The thing is, maybe I didn't have such a good education.  They picked the best 

interpreters they could at that time, I guess.  Not always you apply for a job and you get 

it. 

Q:  That's true.  That's true.  So but you did get a civilian job as an interpreter after the 

war with the military government? 

A:  No. 

Q:  Oh, you didn't? 

A:  No. 

Q:  I thought you said you did? 

A:  I was with the military government in a division. 

Q:  I see.  

A:  So when the war ended in 1946     

Q:  '45.  

A:  '45, the division was sent to the States, I imagine for the purpose to go to Japan 

eventually. 

Q:  That's right.  

A:  That's what I was told. 

Q:  Okay.   

A:  And I got out of division, applied for a job in    for military government in Germany. 
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Q:  And did you get it? 

A:  No. 

Q:  Okay.  So what did you do? 

A:  I was an interpreter. 

Q:  I mean what did you do after you didn't get the job? 

A:  They assigned me to another unit, military government unit. 

Q:  Oh, I see.  So you applied for the job and then you didn't get it and then you were 

assigned to another     

A:  Yeah.  In the army. 

Q:  In the army.  And how long did you stay there doing that? 

A:  I actually    I tell you the way it was actually.  My    the 28th Infantry Division after 

the war was sent to the States. 

Q:  Got it.  

A:  Yeah.  

Q:  Okay.  

A:  And I heard that we would be reassigned to the Pacific. 

Q:  Got it.  Okay. 

A:  I had enough. 

Q:  You didn't want to be there anymore.   

A:  And so I got out of the division and worked for the military    as a    for the civilian 

military government. 

Q:  Okay. 
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A:  For a while. 

Q:  Okay.  And then when did that end?  How did that end? 

A:  Just for a while. 

Q:  Just for a while? 

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  And then you came back? 

A:  No, then I stayed on.  I wanted to get a job as a civilian because they still needed 

interpreter, but that never came through. 

Q:  I see.  

A:  I wasn't married, so what's my hurry to come back?  

Q:  Of course.  

A:  I always can get a job when I come back here.  

Q:  Of course.  

A:  I mean, not that I wanted to make a career out of it. 

Q:  Yeah.  But for the time being? 

A:  The time being. 

Q:  Yeah.  So when did you     

A:  So I was waiting with a lot of solders in a town Frankenthal. 

Q:  Frankenthal? 

A:  Ever heard of that?  

Q:  No.   
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A:  It's near Mannheim.  I figured maybe I get an assignment.  I wasn't married.  What's 

the hurry to come back?  But it didn't come through.  I would like to be an interpreter in 

the Nuremberg trial. 

Q:  I can imagine.   

So tell me, when did you come back?  When did you come back to the States? 

A:  On Christmas Day in 1945.  That's the day I came back. 

Q:  Really? 

A:  Yeah.  Never forget that. 

Q:  What makes it memorable?  What makes it that you don't forget it?  Did the city look 

different? 

A:  No, no.  That I came back that day.  The next day I was discharged. 

Q:  Okay. 

A:  I could have been discharged already months before because I didn't have points.  It 

went according to points.  Because I was in the army for so many years. 

Q:  And you could have    you had enough points that you could have been discharged? 

A:  Yeah.  But I was single.  And     

Q:  So when you were discharged on December 26, 1945, how did you spend New Year's 

that year?  Did you meet with anybody you knew in New York? 

A:  Actually, in    I'm talking about this time period I was living in Portland, Oregon.  Did 

I tell you that?  

Q:  No, you didn't.  

A:  I came to this country in '38. 
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Q:  Correct.   

A:  November '38, to be exact. 

Q:  Okay.  

A:  I worked here for one year. 

Q:  Okay.  

A:  I saved enough money.  I was single.  I saved enough money.  One day I said, I don't 

like New York.  And I didn't like New York, too big a city for me. 

Q:  Uh huh.  

A:  So I applied, I went somewhere, I forgot now, some Jewish organization.  I got some 

information.  They said, that's a good idea, get out of New York.  We've got too many 

refugees here.  They said the best place to go is Texas or Oregon or Washington.  So I 

picked Oregon.  And I went on a bus in 1940 in the summer, on a bus mind you, and 

went to Portland, Oregon.  It took four days and four nights. 

Q:  Oh, my gosh.  

A:  I never forget that. 

Q:  What a trip.  

A:  We went first to Chicago; then Omaha, Nebraska, then to Denver. 

Q:  Wow.  You saw the country.   

A:  Yeah.  I was young.  That's what I did. 

Q:  And what did you do when you got to Portland, Oregon? 

A:  I went to a firm, a big firm, White Stag Manufacturing Company.  They made 

women's clothes.  They sold merchandise all over.  You never heard of them?   
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Q:  No.   

A:  White Stag Manufacturing.   

Q:  White?   

A:  White Stag.  The firm was Hirsch Weis. 

Q:  Okay.  Hirsch Weis, of course.  Stag is Hirsch.    

A:  Excuse me?   

Q:  In German stag is Hirsch and Weis is white.  So it's White Stag.  

A:  That's right. 

Q:  Oh.  

A:  The owner was Mr. Hirsch. 

Q:  Mr. Hirsch.  

A:  Very nice man.  He was about 70 years old at that time. 

Q:  Okay.   

A:  And I was looking for a job in Portland.  And I went to    to him.  He hired me right 

away    for a minimum wage, but I got a job.   

Q:  You got a job.   

A:  I could support myself.  I didn't care.  I was young, I was maybe 21, 22 years old.  

Who cares?  

Q:  Of course.  You got a job.  

A:  I got a job at that time.  With a lot of unemployed.  And I worked myself up.  I 

became the manager in the shipping department at the end. 

Q:  No kidding? 
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A:  Yeah.  I had 20 people working for me.  Was a big firm.  They had maybe 300 people 

employed.  They manufactured women's clothes, ski clothing. 

Q:  And did you like working there? 

A:  I got a job. 

Q:  Well, there are some jobs you got that you don't like and some jobs you got and you 

feel right at home, you know?  You feel like, I enjoy going to work every day.  I enjoy 

what I'm doing.  

A:  I needed a job.  Maybe I had a few hundred dollars saved up.  That's why I left New 

York.  I didn't go hungry. 

Q:  Got it.  

A:  Everything is very reasonable at that time. 

Q:  And it was from Portland that you were drafted? 

A:  Yeah.    

Q:  Okay.   

A:  Yeah.   

Q:  And so when you came back after the war     

A:  From the army, yeah. 

Q: did you go to Portland? 

A:  No. 

Q:  You came to New York? 

A:  Yeah.  I don't know why because I think Portland would have been better. 

Q:  Yeah? 
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A:  Different life.  Nice city, nice country.  The climate is better. 

Q:  But you came here and you stayed there? 

A:  There was a reason also.  I had met a girl while he was in the army and she became 

my wife. 

Q:  Really? 

A:  Later on. 

Q:  What was her name? 

A:  Renee. 

Q:  Renee? 

A:  Her first name. 

Q:  And her last name? 

A:  Ochs. 

Q:  Ochs? 

A:  Yes. 

Q:  And did you    where did you meet her, in New York or     

A:  On a furlough. 

Q:  On a furlough? 

A:  Yeah.  Before I went overseas they gave us a furlough.  I was stationed in Camp 

Ritchie.  You have heard of Camp Ritchie? 

Q:  In Massachusetts    oh, Camp Ritchie, of course. 

A:  In Maryland. 

Q:  Yes, yes.  Of course, we talked about that. 
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A:  In order to be in that camp you had to speak a language.  And had to know a little bit 

about Europe, I guess.  And I trained to be    I was in intelligence department.  That's 

what they call it at that time. 

Q:  Yes.  And so you met your future wife while you were being trained in Camp 

Ritchie? 

A:  So I got a furlough before I went over    I met my wife here through a friend. 

Q:  Here in New York? 

A:  Yeah.  The picture is over there when she was a young girl.  See it behind me?  

Q:  It will be.  Now right now there is a backdrop.  But we'll take a look later, so     

A:  Yeah.  And I corresponded with her.  I was sent overseas a few days later, mind you. 

Was the last furlough I had, like a weekend pass.   

Q:  Wow.   

A:  I was sent overseas and I came back I after the war.  She was 19 when I met her.  And 

when we got married in 1946. 

Q:  That was a good reason to stay in New York.  

A:  Yeah, then I stayed in New York. 

Q:  And when was your    you have how many children? 

A:  One, one daughter. 

Q:  When was she born? 

A:  '46. 

Q:  Your daughter was born in 1946 or you got married in 1946? 

A:  We got married    no, she was born in '49, excuse me. 
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Q:  And her name is? 

A:  Harriet. 

Q:  And you have lived the rest of your career here in New York? 

A:  Yeah.  I would have been better off in hindsight. 

Q:  Better off in iron side? 

A:  In hindsight.   

Q:  In hindsight, okay.   

A:  Go back to Portland, Oregon.  Better living, you know, even though I got a job right 

away.  I had a job out there, too.  I could make a living out there, too.  But it's different. 

Q:  It is different.  

A:  Wonderful.  You have been on the West Coast?  

Q:  Yeah.  

A:  You have been in Portland?  

Q:  Not in Portland, but I have been to Seattle.  

A:  Seattle.  I went to Seattle a few times. 

Q:  So you liked it up there in the Northwest? 

A:  Yeah.  I had a friend in Seattle.  And I visited him. 

Q:  So, Mr     

A:  But I picked Portland.  Matter of fact, I have been to an agency after a year that I 

lived here in New York.  And I'd like to go to the West Coast.  So they gave me some 

information because I didn't know anything about the city.  I don't know Portland, being 
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born in Europe.  I only here a few years.  He said, we think Portland or Seattle or 

California.  So I picked Portland.  I don't know why. 

Q:  But you had an experience     

A:  Of all the places. 

Q:  Of all the places.  

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  Is there anything else, Mr. Kohn, that you would like to add to what we talked about 

today that you think it's important for people to know about, about what you went 

through, your family went through, what the Holocaust was all about? 

A:  In general, you know, what happened     

Q:  Yeah.  

A:     to my family and other people's family.  So it's no different.  I had parents.  They 

were executed, died in concentration camp.  Gassed, I should say.  I had a sister.  I had 

one brother.  He came out of and lived in Holland.  He was two years older.  And he died 

a few years ago.  That's it.  And I had a lot of uncles and aunts who died in the Holocaust, 

a lot of uncles and aunts. 

Q:  Did you talk much about this after the war, about all these things? 

A:  About    no.  I mean, if people asked me, I answered.  But I don't want to start a 

conversation, talk about the Holocaust or my family.  Too sad for me. 

Q:  That's why     

A:  I'm not the only one who went through that.  I know several people who lost their 

parents, their family. 
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Q:  Well, that's why we really appreciate that you have talked to us today.  It's    we know 

it's not easy for such memories to come back.  

A:  Yeah. 

Q:  So I'm going to thank you for sharing your life story.  

A:  You're welcome. 

Q:  I appreciate it.  

A:  Did I go on the record?  

Q:  This went on record.  

A:  So everything I said is on record. 

Q:  It's on record, yeah.   

A:  Why you need that for?  

Q:  That's going to be part of our oral history archives at the Holocaust Museum.  So that 

scholars and historians and researchers will have access to your story.  And I know 

people who do research on Camp Ritchie who will find it interesting.  

A:  That will be in public now?  

Q:  Yeah.  So thank you     

A:  Whatever I told you was the truth. 

Q:  I appreciate it.  I appreciate it and I appreciate that you shared it with me.  So this 

concludes the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum interview with Mr. Sol Kohn 

on August 20, 2013.  Thank you. 
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A:  Where is that going to be?  If I would have given up I wouldn't be here.  Because I 

was with the 28th Infantry Division.  I was    give you an example    I was in the Battle of 

the Bulge.  You heard about that?  

Q:  Yes.  

A:  And I'm still here and half of my division got killed, half of the division.  You can 

read it.  You can look it up, the 28th Infantry.  My regiment they were half dead.  And 

I'm still here. 

Q:  What gave you the strength to go on? 

A:  Excuse me?  

Q:  What gave you the strength to go on? 

A:  You have to fight.  That's all.  You have to fight.  Never give up.  That's it.  Two 

words:  Never give up.  

Q:  I think it's a good lesson.  

A:  That's all. 

Q:  Okay.  Thank you.  

A:  I was sick many times.  I had two heart bypasses and I was very sick.  Never give up.  

And now I feel good. 

Q:  I'm glad.  

A:  I had a very good surgeon who fixed me up.  Never give up.  I can tell that to 

anybody and everybody. 

Q:  Well, you have lived to age 95 and going? 

A:  Next week I'll be 96. 
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Q:  Next week you'll be 96? 

A:  Yes.  September 9th. 

Q:  Happy birthday.  

A:  Thank you very much.  Thank you for coming. 

Q:  You're welcome.  Thank you.  It's been an honor.  

A:  Thank you for sharing my story. 

Q:  It's been an honor to be able to hear it.  

A:  Thank you.  And that's my life. 

Q:  Okay.  Thank you.  We are done.   

Conclusion of Interview 
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